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Frank L. Packard, architect of the Clay County Courthouse at
Clay, West Virginia, designed numerous public buildings in Ohio
and West Virginia during the latter 19th and early 20th centuries.
Packard had a partner, Joseph Yost, of Columbus, Ohio, for most of
the decade of 1890s. The Clay County Courthouse, erected in
1902, was thus one of the early buildings planned by Packard in
his career as an independent professional. Though its dimensions
are modest in comparison with other known Packard designed buildings
in West Virginia, such as the Marion County Courthouse at Fairmont
and the Parkersburg High School, the Clay County Courthouse is
significant nevertheless, . as an example of early 20th century public
architecture in a small town setting.

The courthouse stands on a hill overlooking much of the
community of Clay. Its refined, subtle ornamentation, and highly
symmetrical plan offer a visual complement to the community with
its similarly utilitarian buildings. The local landmark quality
of the courthouse is further evinced by an integrity that has not
been compromised with significant exterior or interior alterations
over the past three quarters of a century.

Eclecticism of the early 20th century is evident in the
architect's choice of style elements. The classical theme is
perhaps most clearly defined in the broken pediment and coupled
Roman Dorlc columns that form a small portico-front-piece about the

,bulldlngs arched entrance. The domed cupola surmounting the hipped
roof with deck duplicates the coupled column theme on each of its
four sides. The Beaux Arts classicism is typical of this period.
Other classical notes include the dentiled cornice with modillions
beneath the broken pediment of the entrance, and the repitition
of this theme in the cornices of the building and cupola. The deck
balustrade and matching roof balustrade have disappeared.

The Clay County Courthouse is a square building whose three
central bays on each elevation are flanked with shallow single-bay
setbacks. A raised, rock-face limestone basement complements the
rustication of the building's first story. The pressed blond brick
facade is divided between the floors with a rock-face beltcourse.

The flatheaded windows with ornamental flat brick arches at the
first level are in contrast to the arched windows of the second.
Especially fine brickwork in seen in the arches of the second floor
windows that are set within shallow recessed panels.

The most 1nterest1ng of the interior features are the three
flreplaces at the rear of the courtroom whose separate flues rise
in a spectacular composite chimney at the rear of the building.
Two unobtrusive subsidiary brick buildings erected at the time of
the courthouse construction are seen at the rear of the bulldlng.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Standing atop the highest hill in the County seat of Clay, West
Virglnla, the 01d Clay County Courthouse easily dominates the view of
the town's main street, as it has the affairs of the community since
its erectlon (on the same spot as the orlglnal courthouse) in 1902.

Clay County was organlzed on Aarch 29, 1858, from land taken from
Braxton and Nicholas County and named in honor of the Kentucky
statesman, Henry Clay. The County Seat went through a variety of
changes, being first designated by the Virginia Assembly as the Town
of Marshall, in honor of Virginia's great Chief Justice, John Marshall.
In 1863, when the legislature of the newly created West Virginia
changed the name to Henry (again, for Henry Clay), the town had its
second name. Throughout this entire period, however, the town was
generally referred to as Clay Courthouse and the United States Post
' Office was called Clay. Finally, in 1927, the name was officially

. changed to Clay, its third and present designation.

The County Court first met at the home of B.W. Byrne in what was
then Marshall. The Court continued to meet at irregular places and
in make-shift surroundings until 1865 when a large courthouse and
a hewn-log building for the County Clerk were constructed. These
structures continued to serve as the seat of county government until
1902, when the new courthouse was erected. An interesting anecdote
is connected with the demolition of the old, and the building of the

- new courthouse. It seems the stones for the new courthouse were
being quarried dquite close to the old structure and during the
qguarrying, several large boulders broke loose and rolled through the
0ld courthouse, partially demolishing the structure, thus the o0ld made
way for the new.

, Aside from serving as the administrative center for Clay County
since 1902, the courthouse has been the scene of several noteworthy
. events in the history of the County. Three very memorable trials
in the county s history were held at the Courthouse; the Sarah Ann
- Legg trial in 1905, the Booger Hole trial of 1917, and the Roscoe Bail
- trial in 1953.
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The first named trial was notable as the first trial of a
woman for murder in Clay County history. Mrs. Legg, accused of
murdering her husband, was aquitted in what was a widely publicized
trial.

The Booger Hole trial of 1917 (so-named for the small community
of Booger Hole nearby) is famous not so much for the principal
participants, victims and murderers, but in.the public's reaction to
it. An angry mob of local citizens surrounded the courthouse and
made an effort to lynch the father and son who were being held for
the murder. Only the strenuous oratorical efforts of the County's
prosecutor kept the courthouse from becomlng the scene of an illegal
hanging.

The famous 1953 Roscoe Bail trial was a direct result of the
Great Widen Coal Strike, often referred to as the "last of the mine
wars". Bail, a striker, was accused and convicted of killing a
mine guard at a time when passions on both sides were running high.

Bail's appeal for a new trial was granted, but he was killed before
it took place.

The Clay County Courthouse has served as the focal point for
the political, social and cultural life of Clay County for 76 years,
and the location for 110 years.

Designed by the regionally prominent architect, Frank L.
Packard, in 1902, it was one of the first of several fine public
buildings that Packard designed after the beginning of his
independent career, and stands as an excellent example of turn—of—
the-century eclecticarchitecture placed in a small community
environment. In recognition of its. importance to the community,
the County has designated that it continue to be maintained, and
it now serves (since the opening of the new Courthouse across the
street on September 23, 1978) as the offices for County magistrates
and the county extention agent.
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